


d) Budget Expenses: Ontario Regulation 284/09, Estelle Moynes, MFSS/Deputy 
Treasurer (Page 27-31) 

e) Proclamation – February Black History Month, Kaila Zamojski, Deputy Clerk 
(Page 32-34) 

11. Committee Reports and Minutes 

12. Notice of Motion(s) 

13. County Councillor’s Report from County Council  

14. Correspondence & Petitions 

a) Correspondence  
i. Correspondence Package I-21-February-03 

ii. Correspondence Package A-21-February-02 

15. By-laws & Resolutions 

a) By-laws  
i. By-law No. 7130-21 – Adopt 2021 Arnprior Airport Operating Grant (Page 35) 

ii. By-law No. 7131-21 – Adopt 2021 Operating and Capital Budget (Page 36-41) 

iii. By-law No. 7132-21 – Adopt WIP (Page 42-43)  

iv. By-law No. 7132-21 – Adopt User Fees and Charges By-law (Page 44-82) 

b) Resolutions  

i. Long Range Capital Forecast  

That Council approve the 2022-2041 Long Range Capital Forecast as presented 
to Council on January 11, 2021 and discussed on February 1, 2021, as a financial 
planning tool; and 
That the 2022-2041 Long Range Capital Forecast be used to inform the annual 
budget process, as well as, other financial planning processes and documents; 
and  
That staff continue to update the Long Range Capital Forecast as part of the 
annual budget process. 



16. Announcements 

17. Media Questions 

18. Closed Session 

One Matter pursuant to Section 239 (2)(b) personal matter about an identifiable 
individual including municipal or local board employees (Library board Appointment)  

One Matter pursuant to Section 239 (2) (b) personal matter about an identifiable 
individual including municipal or local board employees (Commemorative Naming 
Application).  

19. Confirmatory By-law 

By-law No. 7133-21 to confirm the proceedings of Council 

20. Adjournment 

 

Please note: Town Hall is following social distancing protocols that have been recommended 
by the federal and provincial governments to help protect the health and well-being of our 
community.  Please see the Town’s Website to view the live stream.  The meeting will be 
uploaded to YouTube for future viewing. 
The agenda is made available in the Clerk’s Office at the Town Hall, 105 Elgin Street West, 
Arnprior and on the Town’s Website.  Persons wishing to receive a print item on the agenda 
by email, fax, or picked up by hand may request a copy by contacting the Clerk’s Office at 
613-623-4231 ext. 1818.  The Agenda and Agenda items will be prepared in an accessible 
format upon request.  
Full Distribution:  Council, C.A.O., Managers and Town Administrative Staff 

E-mail to:  Cogeco; Metroland Media; Oldies 107.7/My Broadcasting Corporation; Valley 

Heritage Radio; Ottawa Valley Business 

 



 
Minutes of Council Meeting 

January 25, 2021 
6:30 PM 

Electronic Participation – Via Zoom 

Page 1 of 9 
  

 

Council and Staff Attendance 

Council Members Present: 
Mayor Walter Stack  
County Councillor Dan Lynch 
Councillor Ted Strike 
Councillor Lynn Grinstead 
Councillor Tom Burnette  
Councillor Chris Toner 
Councillor Lisa McGee  

Council Members Absent: 
None 

Town Staff Present: 
Robin Paquette, CAO 
Maureen Spratt, Town Clerk 
Kaila Zamojski, Deputy Clerk 
Jennifer Morawiec, General Manager 
Client Services/Treasurer 
John Steckly, General Manager, 
Operations 
Jeff Crawford, Fire Chief  
Megan Rueckwald, Town Planner 
Estelle Moynes, Manager of Finance 
and Support Services 
Graeme Ivory, Manager of Recreation 

1. Call to Order  
Mayor Walter Stack called the Regular Council meeting to order at 6:30 PM and welcomed 
those present.  

2. Roll Call 
The roll was called, with all Members of Council being present. 

3. Adoption of Agenda  
Resolution No. 011-21 
Moved by Lynn Grinstead 
Seconded by Tom Burnette 
Be It Resolved That the agenda for the Regular Meeting of Council dated Monday, January 25, 
2021, be adopted.  

Resolution Carried 

4. Disclosures of Pecuniary Interest 
There were no disclosures declared.  

5. Question Period 
None 



Minutes of Council Meeting  

Page 2  
 

6. Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 
Resolution No. 012-21  
Moved by Dan Lynch  
Seconded by Lisa McGee 
That the minutes of the Regular Meeting of Council listed under item no. 6 (a) on the Agenda be 
adopted (Regular Meeting of Council – January 11, 2021). 

Resolution Carried 

7. Awards/Delegations/Presentations 
a) Presentations  

i. 2021 User Fees and Charges Review – General Manager, Client Services/ 
Treasurer  

The General Manager, Client Services/Treasurer provided a presentation on the 2021 
User Fees and Charges Review 2021, attached as Appendix A and forming part of 
these minutes, and responded to questions.  

8. Public Meeting 
Resolution No. 013-21 (6:43 pm) 
Moved by Lynn Grinstead 
Seconded by Chris Toner 
That Council move into a public meeting regarding a Zoning By-law Amendment (ZBLA) 5/19 for 
Fourth Avenue and McNab Street. 

Resolution Carried 

Mayor Stack called the meeting to order at 6:43 PM, and welcomed those present. Megan 
Rueckwald, Town Planner proceeded to note requirements for oral or written submissions prior 
to adoption of the amending by-law for the purposes of the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal 
requirements.  
 
The Town Planner explained the amendment is being requested to change the zoning 
designation from “Employment (Holding Four) [EMPL(H4]” to “Residential Four – Exception”. 
This would allow for the development of the property with a multi-unit residential development on 
the site, with exceptions to the standard R4 provisions relating to maximum height, parking 
space size, minimum parking space requirements, and amenity area. The application also 
proposed to add a “retirement home” as a permitted use on the property. Staff advised that prior 
to the meeting written comments were received from a number of residents. Comments received 
in advance of the agenda being posted were included in the agenda and comments received 
after were circulated to Council (a copy of which is attached as Appendix B and forms part of 
these minutes).  
The floor was opened to the public for comment, with the following comments being received:  

• Frank and Darlene Guindon - 161 Fourth Avenue 
o Speaking points were sent electronically, and have been attached as Appendix B  
o Mayor Stack provided Mr. Guindon with information regarding other areas of Town 

that have plans for apartments in their developments.  
• Matthew McElligott & Bria Aird – Fotenn Consultants Inc. 

o The plan before Council is a re-developed concept plan, and still may require 
adjustments. 

o There is a commitment from the applicant and property owner to construct 
residential uses on the property.  
 



Minutes of Council Meeting  

Page 3  
 

o The applicant wishes to have the Zoning designation of the property match the 
current Official Plan designation.  

o A further delay in the processing of this application, is not ideal, as the process has 
already been on hold.  

o The Concept plan is subject to change pending the Market study.  
o Early market study findings indicate that there is a demand in this area for this type 

of housing. This type of housing also should help to contribute to available 
affordable housing in Arnprior.  

• Ralph Anzarouth – Nylene Canada– 200 McNab Street 
o Speaking points from Mr. Anzarouth were sent electronically, and have been 

attached as Appendix C forming part of these minutes.  
o Mr. Anzarouth summarized his submitted comments noting his concerns with:  

 Residential development abutting industrial lands 
 Increased traffic  
 Potential for increased trespassing  
 Need to complete a new Environmental Study on the Nylene property, due 

to new buildings being constructed which could affect air flow 
o Mr. Anzarouth requested the concept plan be flipped; having the parking lot moved 

to the other side of the property, and the apartment buildings moved farther away 
from the Nylene lands, providing more distance for potential noise and airflow 
concerns.  

• Alan Whitten – Property Owner – Partner of Huntington Properties  
o Provided history of the proposed project, as well as information on the rationale for 

the focus on apartments, highlighting the Market demand.  
o Explained the concept plan could be adjusted, and the potential for future 

retirement residences.  
o A further delay in moving forward this application would put this development at a 

disadvantage.   

Resolution No. 014-21 (7:23 pm) 
Moved by Dan Lynch 
Seconded by Lynn Grinstead 
That Council resume to the Regular Meeting of Council. 

Resolution Carried 

9. Matter Tabled/ Deferred/ Unfinished Business  
None 

10. Staff Reports 
a) 2021 Strategic Plan Update – CAO 
Resolution No. 015-21 
Moved by Chris Toner 
Seconded by Tom Burnette 
That Council receives the 2021 Update, report number 21-01-25-01 regarding the Town’s 
Strategic Plan as information; and 
That Council confirm the 2021 Strategic Plan Action Plans. 

Resolution Carried 

The CAO provided an overview of the report and responded to questions.  



Minutes of Council Meeting  

Page 4  
 

 

b) Zoning By-law Amendment (ZBLA) 3/20 Phase 2 Marshall’s Bay Meadows Subdivision 
– Town Planner 

Resolution No. 016-21 
Moved by Dan Lynch  
Seconded by Lynn Grinstead 
That Council receives an application for amendment to Zoning By-law No. 6875-18, for the 
Marshall’s Bay Meadows Phase 2 subdivision lands, to amend the zone designation to 
permit land uses associated with a Draft Plan of Subdivision, as detailed in this report; and 

That pursuant to Section 34(12) of the Planning Act, Council hold a public meeting on 
Monday, February 22, 2021, regarding the proposed amendment, to allow for public review 
and comment. 

Resolution Carried 

The Town Planner provided an overview of the report and responded to questions.  

c) Deeming By-law Application File No. D1/20 (Fairgrounds Subdivision) – Town Planner 
Resolution No. 017-21 
Moved by Lynn Grinstead 
Seconded by Lisa McGee 
That Council passes a by-law to deem properties described as Part of Lot 3, Concession B, 
Former Town of Arnprior-McNab: 

i. Lot 4, Plan 129 (114 Charles Street) 
ii. Lot 1, Plan 129 (136 Charles Street) 
iii. Lot 2, Plan 583 (6 Fairview Crescent) 
iv. Lot 3, Plan 583 (8 Fairview Crescent) 
v. Lot 4, Plan 583 (10 Fairview Crescent) 
vi. Lot 5, Plan 583 (12 Fairview Crescent) 
vii. Lot 6, Plan 583 (14 Fairview Crescent) 
viii. Lot 7, Plan 583 (16 Fairview Crescent) 
ix. Lot 8, Plan 583 (18 Fairview Crescent) 
x. Lot 9, Plan 583 (20 Fairview Crescent) 
xi. Lot 10, Plan 583 (22 Fairview Crescent) 
xii. Lot 11, Plan 583 (24 Fairview Crescent) 
xiii. Lot 12, Plan 583 (26 Fairview Crescent) 
xiv. Lot 13, Plan 583 (28 Fairview Crescent) 

not to be registered lots in a plan of subdivision. 
Resolution Carried 

The Town Planner provided an overview of the report and responded to questions.  

11. Committee Reports and Minutes  
None 

12. Notice of Motions 
None 
 
 



Minutes of Council Meeting  

Page 5  
 

13. County Councillor’s Report from County Council  
County Councillor Lynch noted the following information from the County of Renfrew:  

1. On January 12, 2021, County Councillor Lynch made a presentation to the County of 
Renfrew Operations Committee to overturn their recommendation that the County not 
provide any funding for the realignment of the intersection of Daniel and Edey Streets. 
The Committee agreed to have the Town of Arnprior appear as a delegation at the 
February 9, 2021 meeting.  

2. County Budget Workshop dates were changed from January 18th and 19th to February 
1st and 2nd, 2021. Part of the budget process notes roadwork in the Town of Arnprior 
from Elgin Street to Division Street at a cost of $567,584.00. 

3. County Councillor Lynch will report to Council on any take away information from the 
2021 ROMA Conference.   

14. Correspondence & Petitions  
a) Correspondence Package – I-21-January-01 
Resolution No. 018-21 
Moved by Lynn Grinstead  
Seconded by Lisa McGee 
That the Correspondence Package No. I-21-January-02 be received as information and filed 
accordingly.  

Resolution Carried 

County Councillor Dan Lynch noted the following items:  
1. The Provincial Government issued an emergency order that paused the enforcement of 

residential evictions during the declaration of the emergency, which is now expected to 
end February 19, 2021. 

2. In response to County Councillor Lynch’s question surrounding Gas Tax, funding for 
public transportation, the General Manager, Client Services/ Treasurer noted the 
Dedicated Gas Tax Funds for Public Transportation (Gas Tax) Program provides a 
long-term, sustainable source of transit funding to Ontario municipalities. The purpose 
of the program is to provide dedicated gas tax funds to Ontario municipalities to support 
local public transportation services, and to increase overall ridership through the 
expansion of public transportation capital infrastructure and levels of service. To be 
eligible to receive dedicated gas tax funds, a municipality must contribute financially 
towards its public transportation services.  The GMCS, Treasurer further noted in  
order for the Town of Arnprior to become a Gas Tax recipient, the Town of Arnprior 
would need to provide the Ministry with a by-law/resolution, committing to ongoing 
financial support of public transit.  A Transportation Needs study is included on the 2021 
capital project list, which will look at various transportation needs, options, partnerships 
and available funding sources. 

3. The Province is supporting increased funding to the French Language Early Years and 
Child Care Programs.  

4. In 2021, municipalities will have the ability to provide a property tax reduction for small 
business through the option of a new small business property subclass. The province 
will consider matching municipal tax reductions. County Councillor Lynch inquired if the 
Town has considered taking advantage of this property tax reduction.  



Minutes of Council Meeting  

Page 6  
 

In response to County Councillor Lynch, the General Manager, Client 
Services/Treasurer noted this topic will be included on the agenda for the 2021 County 
Tax Policy group (includes county and lower tier treasurers) meeting, held in March. 
The GMCS/Treasurer further  
that taxation is a “zero sum game” and any reduction in taxation liability for a small 
business subclass will need to be distributed to the other classes.  
In Renfrew County, that means over 80% of any cost offset to small business would 
have to be paid for by the residential class. 

5. Good News – the province is eliminating property tax on Army, Navy and Air Force 
Halls.  

6. Small business owners with 2-9 employees are eligible to get a one-time grant of $1000 
for Person Protective Equipment (PPE). Businesses include retail, accommodations 
and food services, repair and maintenance, personal and laundry services, and 
gyms\yoga studios. 

7. The Ontario Fire Marshall announced that the Fire College in Gravenhurst would close 
in March. Firefighters will now have to take “on line” courses or go to a Regional 
Training Centre at a much greater cost. County Councillor Lynch inquired whether this 
would have an impact on training for our Fire Fighters. In response to County Councillor 
Lynch, the CAO noted this would not have an impact on our training. We have three 
qualified instructors who oversee training of our firefighters in house to NFPA 
standards, the same standards as the fire college. Courses at the fire college were 
offered on a weekly basis at a very low rate, however this meant that a volunteer 
firefighter would have to take time away from their own job, with the corresponding loss 
of income, drive 4 hours to the college, and be away from their family for a week. 
Regional training centres offer courses online with a practical component on weekends. 
This is more palatable for volunteer firefighters. Recently three Arnprior firefighters 
successfully completed an NFPA Officer 1 course at the regional training center in 
Almonte. Arnprior firefighters will continue to be encouraged to take advantage of 
training opportunities. 

8. LAS is offering Road/Sidewalk Assessment booking for spring 2021. County Councillor 
Lynch inquired if there is a need to take advantage of this assessment opportunity. In 
response to County Councillor Lynch, the CAO noted the Operations Department 
initiated a road surface evaluation project with Streetscan through LAS in the fall of 
2020.  The fieldwork is complete and the data is currently being processed.  Staff 
expect to receive the final data before spring 2021 and plan to use this data to better 
inform and update our Asset Management Plan. 

b) Correspondence Package – A-21-January-02  
Resolution No. 019-21 
Moved by Tom Burnette 
Seconded by Ted Strike 
That the Correspondence Package No. A-21-January-01 be received and the 
recommendations outlined be brought forward for Council’s consideration.  

Resolution Carried 

 
 



Minutes of Council Meeting  

Page 7  
 

Resolution No. 020-21 
Moved by Tom Burnette 
Seconded by Ted Strike 
That the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Arnprior receives the Municipal Grant 
Policy Application (In-Kind Single Request) from Canadian Blood Services dated November 
19, 2020; and 

Whereas Canadian Blood Services is a not-for-profit charitable organization since 1998 
and has been receiving donations from dedicated Arnprior residents for years in support of 
the organization’s efforts to save and/or enhance patients’ lives. 

Therefore Be It Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Arnprior 
approve the request to waive the Nick Smith Centre Community Hall rental fees for the dates 
of March 10, 2021; June 16, 2021; September 15, 2021; and December 18, 2021; and 

Further That Canadian Blood Services organizers be advised that it is mandatory to carry 
sufficient liability insurance and have the Town of Arnprior added as an additional insured for 
the event. 

Resolution Carried 

Resolution No. 021-21 
Moved by Tom Burnette 
Seconded by Ted Strike 
That the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Arnprior receives the correspondence from 
Statistics Canada, dated January 13, 2021; and 

Whereas Statistics Canada has requested support in encouraging residents in all 
municipalities to complete the census; and 

Whereas this information will have a direct impact on gathering the data needed to plan, 
develop and evaluate programs and services such as schools, daycare, family services, 
housing emergency services, roads, public transportation and skills training for employment. 

Therefore Be It Resolved That the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Arnprior 
supports the 2021 Census, and encourages all residents to complete their census 
questionnaire online. Accurate and complete census data support programs and services that 
benefit our community. 

Resolution Carried 

9. By-laws/Resolutions 
a) By-laws 

Resolution No. 022-21 
Moved by Tom Burnette 
Seconded by Ted Strike 
That the following by-laws be and are hereby enacted and passed:  

i. By-law No. 7126-21 – Appoint D. Lynch Committee of Adjustment/ Property 
Standards Committee 

http://www.census.gc.ca/
http://www.census.gc.ca/


Minutes of Council Meeting  

Page 8  
 

 

ii. By-law No. 7127-21 – Deeming By-law (Lots 1 and 4, Plan 129 and Lot 2-13, Plan 
583) 

iii. By-law No. 7128-21 – Agreement with Arnprior & District Humane Society (Pound 
Keepers Agreement) 

Resolution Carried  
 

10. Announcements  
County Councillor Dan Lynch advised the Arnprior Airport has a new website.  

11. Media Questions  
None 

12. Closed Session  
Resolution No. 023-21 (7:54 pm) 
Moved by Lisa McGee 
Seconded by Ted Strike 
That Council move into Closed Session regarding one (1) matter pursuant to Section 239 (2) (b) 
of the Municipal Act, personal matter about an identifiable individual including municipal or local 
board employees (Staffing Impacts-COVID-19); and one (1) matter pursuant to Section 239 (2) 
(b) of the Municipal Act, personal matter about an identifiable individual including municipal or 
local board employees (CAO Goals). 

Resolution Carried 

Resolution No. 024-21 (8:15 pm) 
Moved by Lisa McGee 
Seconded by Ted Strike 
That Council resume to the Regular Meeting of Council. 

Resolution Carried 

13. Confirmatory By-Law  
Resolution No. 025-21 
Moved by Tom Burnette 
Seconded by Ted Strike 
That By-law No. 7129-21 being a By-law to confirm the proceedings of the Regular Meeting of 
Council held on January 25, 2021 be and it is hereby enacted and passed.  

Resolution Carried 

14. Adjournment 
Resolution No. 026-21   
Moved by Lisa McGee 
Seconded by Lynn Grinstead 
That this meeting of Council be adjourned at 8:16 pm.  

Resolution Carried 



Minutes of Council Meeting  

Page 9  
 

Signatures 

Walter Stack, Mayor  Maureen Spratt, Town Clerk 



 
Minutes of Special Council Meeting 

February 1, 2021 
5:00 PM 

Electronic Participation – Via Zoom 

Page 1 of 3 
  

 

Council and Staff Attendance 

Council Members Present: 
Mayor Walter Stack  
County Councillor Dan Lynch (5:07 pm) 
Councillor Ted Strike 
Councillor Lynn Grinstead 
Councillor Tom Burnette  
Councillor Chris Toner 
Councillor Lisa McGee  

Council Members Absent: 
None 

Town Staff Present: 
Robin Paquette, CAO 
Maureen Spratt, Town Clerk 
Kaila Zamojski, Deputy Clerk 
Jennifer Morawiec, General Manager 
Client Services/Treasurer 

John Steckly, General Manager, 
Operations 
Jeff Crawford, Fire Chief 
Estelle Moynes, Manager of Finance 
and Support Services’ 
Graeme Ivory, Manager of Recreation 
Janet Carlile, Museum Curator 
Steve McLean, Public Works Supervisor 
Scott Matthews, Waterworks Supervisor 
Taylor Giffen, Operations Supervisor 
Lindsay Wilson, Marketing & Economic 
Development Officer 
Deanna Nicholson, Environmental 
Engineering Officer  
Patrick Foley, Engineering Officer, 
Facilities and Assets 
Ryan Wall, Engineering Officer 

1. Call to Order  
Mayor Walter Stack called the Special Council meeting to order at 5:00 PM and welcomed those 
present.  

2. Roll Call 
The roll was called, with all Members of Council being present, except County Councillor Dan 
Lynch. 

3. Adoption of Agenda  
Resolution No. 027-21 
Moved by Chris Toner 
Seconded by Lisa McGee 
Be It Resolved That the agenda for the Special Meeting of Council dated Monday, February 1, 
2021, be adopted.  

Resolution Carried 



Minutes of Special Council Meeting  

Page 2  
 

4. Disclosures of Pecuniary Interest  
At 5:07 p.m., County Councillor Lynch disclosed the following pecuniary interest:  

“I, County Councillor Dan Lynch have a pecuniary interest in Item No. 6(a)(i) – Tab 10, 
of the 2021 Draft Budget Binder, in regards to the Arnprior Airport, as I am a paid 
employee of the Arnprior Airport.”  

5. Question Period 
None 

6. Awards/Delegations/Presentations 
a) Presentations 

Prior to reviewing the 2021 Draft Budget Document, the General Manager, Client 
Services/Treasurer provided an introductory presentation to Council outlining a recap 
of the 2021 Draft Budget.  

County Councillor Dan Lynch joined the Special Meeting of Council, via electronic 
participation, at 5:07 pm.  

i. 2021 Draft Operating Budget 

The General Manager, Client Services/Treasurer reviewed the 2021 Draft Budget cost 
centers, highlighting key areas of the 2021 Draft Operating Budget, and responded to 
questions.  

County Councillor Dan Lynch vacated his place in the electronic meeting at 6:27 pm, at 
the time the Arnprior Airport Grant was being discussed, and resumed his place in the 
electronic meeting after discussions were complete at 6:30 pm. 

ii. 2021 Draft Capital Budget 
The General Manager, Client Services/ Treasurer and Manager of Finance and 
Support Services reviewed the 2021 Draft Budget cost centers, highlighting key areas 
of the 2021 Draft Capital Budget, and responded to questions.  

iii. Supporting Documents (Reserves/ Reserve Funds; Debt; 2020 Works in 
Progress (WIP) 

The General Manager, Client Services/Treasurer and Manager of Finance and Support 
Services /Deputy Treasurer reviewed the 2021 Draft Budget supporting documents 
including the reserve and reserve funds, debt, and 2020 works in progress, and 
responded to questions.  

iv. 2021 Long Range Capital Forecast (LRCF) 
The General Manager, Client Services/Treasurer and Manager of Finance and Support 
Services/Deputy Treasurer reviewed the Draft 2021 Long Range Capital Forecast 
(LRCF) document, highlighting key areas, and responded to question.  

Following the conclusion of the budget presentation, the following motions were considered: 

Resolution No. 028-21 
Moved by Lynn Grinstead  
Seconded by Lisa McGee 



Minutes of Special Council Meeting  

Page 3  
 

 
That Council directs the Treasurer to increase the annual operating grant for the Arnprior 
Public Library to $291,441 as per the Library request.  

Resolution Carried  

Resolution No. 029-21 
Moved by Lisa McGee 
Seconded by Chris Toner 
That Council direct staff to prepare the 2020 Budget by-laws for consideration of adoption at 
the February 8, 2021 Regular Meeting of Council, including a municipal tax rate increase of 
1.5%. 

Resolution Carried 
 

The General Manager, Client Services/Treasurer thanked staff for their assistance in preparing 
the 2021 Draft Budget, as well as Council for their participation and assistance with the budget 
process.  

Mayor Walter Stack and Members of Council thanked staff for their hard work on the 2021 
Draft Budget, noting the document and process continues to be easy to follow.  

The Town Clerk noted with the conclusion of the budget discussions there is no need for the 
additional meeting scheduled on February 2, 2021, thus it will be cancelled.  

County Councillor Lunch provided a brief update on the County of Renfrew 2021 Draft Budget. 

7. Confirmatory By-Law  
Resolution No. 030-21 
Moved by Tom Burnette 
Seconded by Dan Lynch  
That By-law No. 7130-21 being a By-law to confirm the proceedings of the Special Meeting of 
Council held on February 1, 2021 be and it is hereby enacted and passed.  

Resolution Carried 

8. Adjournment 
Resolution No. 031-21   
Moved by Lynn Grinstead 
Seconded by Lisa McGee 
That this meeting of Council be adjourned at 7:14 pm.  

Resolution Carried 

Signatures 

Walter Stack, Mayor  Maureen Spratt, Town Clerk 



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Town of Arnprior Staff Report 

Subject: Complaint under Code of Conduct 
Report Number: 21-02-08-01 
Report Author and Position Title: Maureen Spratt, Town Clerk  
Department: Client Services 
Meeting Date: February 8, 2021 

Recommendations: 

That Council receive the “Complaint under Code of Conduct” dated January 29, 2021, 
submitted by Mr. W. Hunter, Integrity Commissioner attached as Appendix A to Report 
Number 21-02-08-01 and consider the recommendations contained within Appendix A.  

Background: 

Municipalities are required to appoint an integrity commissioner who reports to council and is 
responsible for performing in an independent manner the functions assigned by the 
municipality with respect to the application of the code of conduct and of any procedures, 
rules and policies of the municipality governing the ethical behaviour of members of council 
and local boards. Mr. William Hunter was first appointed in 2013 as the Town’s Integrity 
Commissioner and continues in that role today. 

Discussion: 

The Integrity Commissioner is an independent and impartial position that reports directly to 
municipal council and whose powers and duties are set out in the Municipal Act, 2001. 
Section 223.4 of the Municipal Act, 2001 provides that an Integrity Commissioner may 
conduct an inquiry into allegations about whether a member of council or local board has 
contravened the Code of Conduct.  Following an investigation, council may act upon the 
Integrity Commissioner’s findings including imposing reprimands and suspending members. 

  



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Attached, as Appendix A to this report is a report from Mr. W. Hunter, Integrity 
Commissioner, regarding a complaint made against a member related to a posting on 
“What’s Up Arnprior” on December 18, 2020.  Mr. Hunter will be in attendance at the 
February 8, 2021 Meeting to answer any questions of Council. 

Options: 

N/A 

Policy Considerations: 

N/A 

Financial Considerations: 

N/A 

Meeting Dates: 

N/A 

Consultation: 

N/A 

Documents: 

Appendix A – Integrity Commissioner Report  

Signatures 

Reviewed by Department Head: Jennifer Morawiec 

Reviewed by General Manager of Client Services/Treasurer:  Jennifer Morawiec 

CAO Concurrence: Robin Paquette 

Workflow Certified by Town Clerk: Maureen Spratt 

 



 

 
 
 
PRIVILEGED & CONFIDENTIAL 

 

 

 

   
   

 

 
 

Town of Arnprior 
 
 
 

Integrity Commissioner 
Suite 101 – 85 Plymouth Street, Ottawa, Ontario 

  K1S 3E2 
Telephone:  613-232-5773 

Facsimile: 613-232-3509 
www.viceandhunter.ca 

 
BY E-MAIL 
 

January 29, 2021 
 

 
Town of Arnprior 
105 Elgin Street W. 
Arnprior ON   K7S 0A8 
 
Attention: Maureen Spratt, Clerk 
 
Dear Ms. Spratt: 
 
RE: Complaint 
 
I have reviewed the responses Councillor McGee made to the complaint against her. The 
complaint related to a posting Councillor McGee made on What’s Up Arnprior on December 18, 
2020 as follows: 

 
Let me get this straight.... He blindsides Council with his "plan" on Monday, fails 
to apologize to the BIPOC community for his CBC blunder, turns his racist shovel 
into a backhoe, and leaves Council shocked and unprepared to deal with a plan 
we haven't seen, and then openly critizes (sic) us and suggests that WE are 
holding things up? 
 
No. Just no. 
 
Gloves Off 
 
To be clear: These are MY personal comments, and mine alone. 

 



 
 
 
 
PERSONAL & CONFIDENTIAL 

 

 

Page | 2  
 

In addition, on January 6, 2021 Councillor McGee further posted on What’s Up Arnprior and 
shared a link to an Inside Ottawa Valley article which reported on December 24, 2020 
concerning the December 23, 2020 council meeting. In that article, there was a reference to and a 
quotation of what Councillor McGee previously posted on What’s Up Arnprior on December 
18, 2020. 
 
On January 28, 2021, on InsideOttawaValley.com Councillor McGee’s posting, referred to 
above, was quoted again. It has been referred to in various tweets. It appears that the statements 
Councillor McGee used, in breach of the Code of Conduct, are attracting attention over a 
considerable period of time which is not surprising given the verbiage used in the initial post. 
 
The complaint was that by using certain language such as the Mayor “. . . turns his racist shovel 
into a backhoe. . . “ and  “Gloves off”  and “He blindsides Council with his "plan" “Councillor 
McGee breached the following parts of the Town’s Code of Conduct: 

 
3.3 - Media Communications - It is understood that the Mayor as Head of Council, 
as per section 226(1)(c) of the Municipal Act, 2001 is the primary spokesperson, 
which does not prohibit other Members of Council, therefore the following shall 
apply:  
 
• Members of Council will accurately communicate the decisions of the Town of 
Arnprior Council, even if they disagree with the majority decision of Council, and 
by doing so affirm the respect for and integrity in the decision-making process of 
Council. A Member may state that he/she did not support the decision, or voted 
against the decision. (emphasis added) 
 
• Members shall refrain from making judgemental or critical comments about 
other Members of Council or staff, or about the Town Council's processes and 
decisions.  
 
• Members at all times shall refrain from speculating or reflecting upon the 
motives of other Members of Council or staff, when communicating with the 
media.  
 
• Members of Council will keep all confidential information confidential, until 
such a time arises that the matter can properly be made public. A breach of 
confidentiality by Members diminishes public confidence.  
 
5.1 Interpersonal Behaviour  



 
 
 
 
PERSONAL & CONFIDENTIAL 

 

 

Page | 3  
 

(a) Treat Every Person with Dignity, Understanding and Respect:  
 
• Members shall refrain from abusive conduct, personal charges, verbal attacks, 
discrimination or gossip upon the character of motives of municipal employees, 
Councillors, Committee Members, Volunteers, or the public. Members shall abide 
by the Town of Arnprior's Workplace Violence Prevention and Workplace 
Harassment Policies and Programs, as well as the Ontario Human Rights Code, 
and shall take these policies and legislation and their contents into account at all 
times when considering etiquette. All dealings with any person are to exhibit a 
high degree of professionalism and are to be based on honesty, dignity, 
understanding, respect, impartiality and fairness.  
(c) Do not Engage in Violence or Harassment of Any Kind:  
 
• No Member shall engage in any form of Violence or Harassment, as defined in 
Section 1 of this document, taken from the Town of Arnprior's Workplace 
Violence Prevention and Workplace Harassment Policies and Programs and the 
Ontario Human Rights Code, as amended.  
Section 10 (1) of the Human Rights Code states that “harassment” means engaging 
in a course of vexatious comment or conduct that is known or ought reasonably to 
be known to be unwelcome. 

 
In Councillor McGee’s response to me, she acknowledged that she posted to What’s up 
Arnprior on December 18th, 2020 (“the Post”) and that the Post was a contravention of the Code 
of Conduct. In her defence, she stated: 

 
While the end does not necessarily justify the means, it was because of my 
concern for Council that I posted what I did. In hindsight, I should have simply 
undertaken the efforts I made to coordinate a Special Council Meeting, and I 
should have reported any concerns to the Integrity Commissioner. In future, this 
is what I will do. I am hoping that you understand that while my methods clearly 
need fine-tuning, it was because of my defense of Council and its proceedings 
that I posted what I did to Facebook. 

 
As can be appreciated, once the harm has been done, especially on social media, which is 
widely read, Councillor McGee’s acknowledgment to me that she acted improperly and 
breached the Code of Conduct does not eliminate or reduce the continuing harm done by her 
breach of the Code of Conduct. 
 
 



 
 
 
 
PERSONAL & CONFIDENTIAL 

 

 

Page | 4  
 

Possible Penalties 
Section 223.4 (5) Of the Municipal Act, 2001 states that the municipality may impose either of the 
following penalties on a member of council, if the Commissioner reports to the municipality 
that, in his opinion, the member has contravened the code of conduct: 

 
1. A reprimand. 
2. Suspension of the remuneration paid to the member in respect of his or her 
services as a member of council or of the local board, as the case may be, for a 
period of up to 90 days. 

 
Council may also take the following additional actions: 

i. Remove the Member from an Advisory Committee or Board. 
ii. Remove a Chair of a Committee or Board. 
iii. Repay or reimburse the compensation received. 
iv. Return property or reimburse for the value of it. 
v. Request for a public apology to Council, the complainant, or both. 
vi. Any other fair and reasonable sanction given the circumstances. 

 
Recommendation 
Given the seriousness of this matter and taking into account that Councillor McGee appears to 
realize the harm done and accepting her assurance that she will not repeat such verbiage, my 
recommendation to Council is that Councillor McGee’s remuneration in respect of her services 
as a member of council be suspended for a period of Thirty (30) days. 
 
 
INTEGRITY COMMISSIONER 
Per: 
 
 
 
WILLIAM R. HUNTER 
WRH/sc 
cc. Councillor Lisa McGee 
cc. Complainant 



Page 1 of 5 

 

 
Town of Arnprior Staff Report 

Subject: Marshall’s Bay Meadows Subdivision – Preliminary Earthworks and 
Rock Blasting 
Report Number: 21-02-08-02 
Report Author and Position Title: Megan Rueckwald, Town Planner 
Department: Community Services Branch 
Meeting Date: February 8, 2021 

Recommendations: 

That Council approve a request from Marshall’s Bay Regional Inc. to allow for earthworks 
and rock blasting on the lands subject to Subdivision Application 47-T-14002, Marshall’s Bay 
Meadows Phase 2, subject to the requirements outlined in Report 2021-02-08-02. 

Background: 

Owner:  Marshall’s Bay Regional Inc. 
Description of Subject Lands: See Document 1 – Key Plan 
Legal Description: Part Lot 1, Concessions C & D and part of Road Allowance 
Between Concession C & D, Geographic Township of McNab 
Area of Land: 24.06 ha (59.45 acres) 
 
Summary of Proposal 
 
The owner of the lands received Draft Approval on the proposed Plan of Subdivision (47-T-
14002) and are currently registering Phase 1 of the development.  For the future phases, the 
developer is working towards clearing the draft conditions. Once draft conditions have been 
satisfied, the Owner can receive final approval from the County of Renfrew, register the Plan 
and begin servicing of the lands and construction of houses. 
 
Currently the owner is requesting permission to begin preparation of the lands in advance of 
clearing the draft conditions for Phase 2 of the subdivision. This work would include 
preliminary earthworks and rock blasting. 
 



Page 2 of 5 

 

Discussion: 

Subdivision Approval Process 

In the standard Subdivision Approval process, upon receipt of draft conditions, an applicant 
can begin fulfilling draft conditions, which include such items as: 
•  applying for and obtaining proper zoning for the lands; 
•  preparing and filing detailed design drawings for review and approvals; 
•  obtaining clearance letters from clearance agencies (i.e. hydro, bell, MNR, County, etc.); 
•  obtaining Environmental Compliance Approvals (ECA) from the Ministry of the 

Environment Conservation and Parks (MECP); and 
•  entering into a Subdivision Agreement with the municipality, including provision of security 

and insurance certificates. 
 
The clearance of the draft conditions is the responsibility of the applicant. There is a three 
year period, with the possibility of one-year extensions at the request and approval of the 
County, in which the applicant must supply clearance of all conditions. The applicant must 
clear all conditions, enter into a subdivision agreement, and register on title, or the draft 
approval will lapse. 
 
Once all Draft Conditions are cleared, the applicant supplies the Plan of Subdivision to the 
County for approval. Once approved, the Plan and any agreements and easements are then 
registered at the Land Registry Office and construction may begin. 
 
Preservicing: 
 
Preservicing is typically understood to be the installing of the services (water and sanitary) on 
the subject lands in the locations as approved by the Town and the MECP. The developer is 
not allowed to connect those services into the Town’s operational services during this time 
and until the subdivision agreement is signed. The Town will allow pre-servicing of 
subdivision lands at the developer's risk, once: 
 
• draft approval has been granted; 
• proper zoning is in place; 
• Provincial approvals (ECA) has been obtained; 
• securities have been posted; and 
• insurance certificates are provided. 
 
A letter of undertaking (indemnity), must be posted ensuring that the Town is not responsible 
in any way for the project going ahead and saying that no connections to municipal 
services will be allowed or building permits issued prior to the registration of the subdivision 
agreement and plan. The intent of 'pre-servicing' is to allow approved services to be installed 
prior to final legal registration. 
 
Marshall’s Bay Meadows: 
 
With regards to the subject development, the owner has undertaken the following steps 
towards registration of the Plan: 



Page 3 of 5 

 

 
• applied for proper zoning for the lands (public meeting to be held February 22nd); 
• prepared and filed detailed design drawings for review and approvals; and 
• received ECA from the MECP. 
 
Therefore, at this time, staff would not recommend granting preservicing as proper zoning is 
not yet in place. However, the owner has requested to undertake earthworks and rock 
blasting to start preparing the site for the eventual servicing and construction of the 
subdivision. There is very low risk to the municipality in allowing this activity to occur. As a 
condition of this approval, staff recommend that the owner must: 
 
• post a letter of undertaking indemnifying the Town; 
• post security for $50,000; and 
• add the Town to their commercial general liability insurance certificate, prior to 
  commencing any works. 
 
These securities will be carried over to the security estimate, set up through the 
subdivision agreement. 

Options: 

Should Council decide that it is not appropriate to approve the request to complete the 
works proposed, staff will advise the applicant that they are not allowed to begin site 
works. 

Policy Considerations: 

The proposed development of a vacant lot within the settlement area of the Town of Arnprior 
is a positive investment supporting the Town’s strategic vision of robust sustainable growth 
with new residential development. The units will provide a live/work/play housing choice for 
our residents. Furthermore, timely and efficient processing of requests provides effective 
service delivery and shows the Town is business friendly. By supporting this request, the 
development can go ahead in a suitable and quick manner. 

Financial Considerations: 

Not applicable. 

Meeting Dates: 

Not applicable. 

Consultation: 

• John Steckly, General Manager, Operations 



Page 4 of 5 

 

Documents: 

1. Key Plan 

Signatures 

Reviewed by Department Head:  

Reviewed by General Manager of Client Services/Treasurer:  Jennifer Morawiec 

CAO Concurrence: Robin Paquette 

Workflow Certified by Town Clerk: Maureen Spratt 

  



Page 5 of 5 

 

Document #1 – Key Plan 

 

 



Page 1 of 3 

 

 
Town of Arnprior Staff Report 

Subject: Town Initiated Zoning By-law Amendment – Semi-Detached Dwellings 
on Separate Lots   
Department: Community Services Branch  
Report Number: 21-02-08-03  
Report Author: Megan Rueckwald, Town Planner 
Meeting Date: February 8, 2021 

Recommendations: 

That Council consider a general amendment to Comprehensive Zoning By-law 6875-18 to 
establish a minimum frontage and interior side yard setback for semi-detached units each on 
a separate lot in the Residential One (R1) and Residential Three (R3) zone.  

That pursuant to Section 34(12) of the Planning Act, Council hold a public meeting on 
Monday, March 8, 2021, regarding the proposed amendment, to allow for public review and 
comment.  

Background: 

Comprehensive Zoning By-law 6875-18 was enacted and passed on October 9, 2018. The 
By-law establishes permitted uses and appropriate standards for development across the 
Town. General amendments are anticipated to occur following a comprehensive zoning by-
law update to address inconsistencies, barriers to implementation, errors and omissions.  

The Residential One (R1) and Residential Three (R3) zones establish minimum frontage for 
semi-detached units on a single lot. The R1 zone requires 16 meters and the R3 zone 
requires a minimum of 15 meters. No measurement is established for each semi-detached 
dwelling should the owner wish to sever and sell each unit individually.  

Staff anticipate forthcoming requests for site specific zoning to address this omission in the 
Zoning By-law. In order to address the omission, staff are proposing that a minimum frontage 
for semi-detached units on separate lots be established through a Town initiated 
amendment.  



Page 2 of 3 

 

Discussion: 

A semi-detached dwelling is a house that is divided vertically into two dwelling units that 
share a common wall above and below grade. Separate sale of semi-detached units is a 
typical undertaking either by severance or through part lot control in a plan of subdivision. 
The current By-law provisions establish a minimum frontage for semi-detached units on a 
single lot only.  

Staff propose that the minimum frontage for semi-detached units on separate lots be 
established at 50% of the requirement for semi-detached units. In the R1 zone, this would be 
8 meters per unit and 7.5m in the R3 zone. The Zoning By-law also establishes a minimum 
interior side yard setback of 1.2 to 1.5 meters for dwellings in the R1 and R3 zone. Given that 
the semi-detached units share a common wall, the interior side yard setback would not be 
applicable to the interior of the semi-detached. Staff recommend that wording be included in 
the amendment that the minimum interior side yard is required on one side only.  

 

Figure 1.0 Plot plan with semi-detached dwelling in R1 zone on separate lots. Proposed 
minimum lot frontage for each lot is 8m with a 0m interior side yard setback.  

Options: 

Council could choose not to amend the Comprehensive Zoning By-law at this time, leaving 
individual applicants to seek site specific zoning to separate semi-detached units.  

  



Page 3 of 3 

 

 

Policy Considerations: 

The proposed amendment is consistent with the 2020 Provincial Policy Statement and 
conforms to the Town of Arnprior Official Plan.  

Financial Considerations: 

As this is a general amendment to the Town’s By-law, recommended due to an omission in 
the By-law, and affecting the entire town, notice will be provided in the local newspaper, as 
well as on the Town’s website. The funding for advertising of Notice of Public Meeting will be 
taken from the Planning – Advertising Operating Budget.  

Meeting Dates: 

1. Proposed Public Meeting – March 8, 2021  

Consultation: 

• CAO 

Documents: 

1. None.  

Signatures 

Reviewed by Department Head:  

Reviewed by General Manager of Client Services/Treasurer: Jennifer Morawiec 

CAO Concurrence: Robin Paquette 

Workflow Certified by Town Clerk: Maureen Spratt 

 



Page 1 of 5 

 

 
Town of Arnprior Staff Report 

Subject: Budget Matters – Expenses: Ontario Regulation 284/09 
Report Number: 21-02-08-04 
Report Author and Position Title: Estelle Moynes,  Manager of Finance & 
Support Services 
Department: Client Services 
Meeting Date: February 8, 2021 

Recommendations: 

That Council adopt this report by Resolution as required under the Municipal Act, 2001, 
Ontario Regulation 284/09. 

Background: 

Municipalities are required to prepare annual Financial Statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles for local governments as recommended by the 
Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants 
(CICA).  These accounting principles included accounting for post-employment benefits 
expenses, solid waste landfill closure and post-closure expenses, and amortization expenses 
(related to tangible capital assets).  The PSAB accounting standards adopted for 
municipalities however do not require that annual budgets be prepared on the same basis. 

Ontario Regulation 284/09 permits municipalities to exclude a portion or all of the following 
expenses from their annual budgets: 

• Post-employment benefits expenses, 
• Solid waste landfill closure and post-closure expenses, and 
• Amortization expenses (related to tangible capital assets). 

However, the legislation requires staff to prepare an annual report to Council which identifies 
the expenses that have been included in the PSAB Financial Statements but excluded from 
the budget, identifies the impact of these differences on the change in the municipality’s 
accumulated surplus, and analyzes the impact of excluding these expenses from the budget 
on future capital assets funding requirements.  



Page 2 of 5 

 

Discussion: 

As permitted under Regulation 284/09 in preparing the budget for a year, a municipality may 
exclude from the estimated expenses all or a portion of the following:  

• Post-employment benefits expenses, 
• Solid waste landfill closure and post-closure expenses, and 
• Amortization expenses (related to tangible capital assets). 

These expenses were not included in the Town’s budget for 2021.  The Town, like most 
municipalities, continues to prepare budgets on the traditional funding basis where revenue 
and expenditures for operating and capital budgets are balanced. 

Impact of Excluded Expenses on 2021 Budgeted Accumulated Surplus 

Accordingly, on a funding basis, there is no projected impact to the Town’s projected 
accumulated surplus (Contribution to Reserves less Capital Investments) from the 2021 
Budget.  Regulation 284/09 requires a municipality to identify the impact of the 2021 budget 
on the Town’s accumulated surplus after converting the 2021 budget and assumptions to the 
full accrual basis of accounting (PSAB). 

The equity of a municipality is defined as “accumulated surplus”.  The accumulated surplus 
consists mainly of: 

• Operating Fund Surpluses including local boards 
• Equity in Tangible Capital Assets 
• Reserves and Reserve Funds 
• Less Unfunded Liabilities such as Employee Future Benefits and Post Closure Landfill 

Sites 

The result PSAB financial reporting requirements are that the Town’s surplus for budgeting 
purposes differs from the surplus on the Town’s financial statements.  The estimated effect 
on the 2021 ending surplus due to the excluded expenses and change in reporting is 
anticipated to be a net increase of $1,013,368, summarized as follows: 

PSAB Financial Reporting – 2021 Ending Surplus  

Post-employment benefits expense  $0 

Solid waste landfill closure and post-closure expenses ($56,126) 

Amortization of tangible capital assets ($3,676,124) 

Acquisition of tangible capital assets $4,745,618    

Total $1,013,368 



Page 3 of 5 

 

The changes to accounting and reporting requirements under PSAB are a financial 
accounting treatment only and do not affect operating surpluses.  This difference is one of 
financial statement presentation only. 

Explanations of the impacts to the accumulated surplus are outlined below: 

a) Employee Future Benefits/Post-Employment Benefits Expenses 

The Town currently does not have any Employee future benefit / post-employment benefit 
expenses where the benefits are earned by employees in the current period but not paid for 
by taxes or rates until a future period.  Benefits for retirees are paid for by the retiree, not the 
Town.  These could include items such as sick leave benefit plans, long-term disability plans, 
Workplace Safety and Insurance Act (WSIB) benefits and post-retirement plans. 

b) Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post Closure Expenses 

Under the Ontario Environmental Protection Act, the Town is required to provide for the 
closure and post-closure care of solid waste landfill sites.  The costs related to these 
obligations are provided over the estimated remaining life of the landfill site based on usage 
and recorded as such on the Town’s Consolidated Financial Statements. 

PSAB standards do not require liabilities associated with solid waste landfill closure and post-
closure care activities to be fully funded by setting aside any portion of the accumulated 
surplus as reserves and/or reserve funds. 

As at December 31, 2020, the estimated liability for landfill closure and post-closure costs will 
be approximately $1,632,605 which is funded by the Landfill Reserve’s estimated balance of 
$1,799,213.  The impact (change) of Landfill Closure and Post-Closure costs is a decrease to 
the accumulated surplus and is estimated to be $56,126 in 2021. 

The Town does include an annual contribution to the Landfill Reserve in the operating budget 
of $51,000 to address the annual increase in the Landfill closure and post-closure costs to 
ensure that sufficient funding will be available to discharge this liability over the remaining life 
of the landfill site. 

c) Amortization Expense to Tangible Capital Assets 

Annual financial statements include amortization expenses on tangible capital assets as 
required by PSAB standards.  The Town’s 2020 Financial Statements will include 
approximately $3.68M of amortization expense related to the recording of tangible capital 
assets.  Amortization expense for 2021 is estimated at $3.79M based on current tangible 
capital assets and planned capital investments. 

Although the Town’s 2021 budget does not include amortization expenses on tangible capital 
assets, provisions are made for contributions to Reserve/Reserve Funds to fund the planned 
capital expenditures. 

 



Page 4 of 5 

 

 Tangible Capital Assets Capital Related Expenses 

2021 Budget $4,745,618 $308,000 

Funding Sources   

Reserve/Reserve Funds $3,665,316 $150,000 

Development Charges $229,900 $150,000 

Government Grants $850,402 $8,000 

 

Planned capital expenditures for 2021 are over $5.0M with $4.7M directly related to tangible 
capital asset replacement/additions.  The capital budget does not include the financing (debt 
repayment) of $2.6M for prior capital investments which were included in the operating 
budget.  The capital budget is funded through a combination of reserves, development 
charges and government grants.  

As amortization expense is not included in the 2021 budget, the impact is an estimated 
$3.68M reduction to the Town’s accumulated surplus.  However, helping offset amortization 
expense is the funding for the acquisition of tangible capital assets estimated at $4.75M.  The 
estimated 2021 impact of tangible capital assets is a net increase of $1.07M to the 
accumulated surplus. 

Options: 

N/A 

Policy Considerations: 

This report has been completed in accordance with the Town’s Procedure By-law and meets 
the Town’s Strategic Plan vision for embracing a Sustainable Financial Model. 

Financial Considerations: 

As outlined in the report above. 

Meeting Dates: 

N/A 

Consultation: 

N/A 



Page 5 of 5 

 

Documents: 

N/A 

Signatures 

Reviewed by Department Head: Jennifer Morawiec 

Reviewed by General Manager of Client Services/Treasurer: Jennifer Morawiec 

CAO Concurrence:  Robin Paquette 

Workflow Certified by Town Clerk: Maureen Spratt 

 





Page 2 of 2 

 

Assessment of the Proclamation Request from the Town of Arnprior 
Proclamations Policy No. ADMIN-C-2.05 

Section 5.3.2 – Does not promote hatred or 
illegal activity 

Complies 

Section 5.3.3 – Does not contain 
inappropriate statements 

Complies 

Documents: 

1. Proclamation Document – February 2021 Black History Month 

Signatures 

Reviewed by Department Head: Jennifer Morawiec 

Reviewed by General Manager of Client Services/Treasurer: Jennifer Morawiec 

CAO Concurrence: Robin Paquette 

Workflow Certified by Town Clerk: Maureen Spratt 

 



 

 

Town of Arnprior Proclamation 
February 2021 as: 

“Black History Month” 
Whereas the Government of Canada is celebrating Black History 
Month in February, with this year’s theme being “The Future is Now;” 
and  

Whereas the Province of Ontario also recognizes Black History 
Month and its significance in February; and 

Whereas the Town of Arnprior understands the importance of 
recognizing individuals in Arnprior, both past and present, who are 
members of the Black community; and 

Whereas during Black History Month, we commemorate and 
celebrate the many achievements and contributions made by Black 
Canadians, who throughout our history have shaped our country’s 
heritage and identity; and  

Therefore I, Walter Stack, Mayor of the Town of Arnprior, do hereby 
proclaim February 2021, as Black History Month in the Town of 
Arnprior. I urge all Members of Council, staff, and residents of the 
Town of Arnprior to celebrate and learn of the great accomplishments 
brought by members of the Black community to the Town of Arnprior.  

 
Walter Stack, Mayor  



The Corporation of the 
Town of Arnprior 
 
By-Law No. 7131-21 
 
Being a By-Law to approve a grant for the Arnprior Municipal Airport.  

Whereas pursuant to The Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, the 
Council of a Municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural 
person for the purpose of exercising its authority under this or any other Act, to enable 
them to govern their affairs as they consider appropriate and to enhance their ability to 
respond to municipal issues; and  

Whereas, notice to adopt the budget was given in accordance with the Municipal Act, 
2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25 and the Town’s Notice By-law 6639-16 by being published on 
the Town’s website and in a newspaper at least ten (10) days in advance of the Council 
meeting at which the budget will be considered for adoption; and 

Whereas pursuant the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, as amended, requires that 
a municipality’s capacity, rights, powers and privileges, shall be exercised by by-law; 
and 

Whereas the Corporation of the Town of Arnprior deems it advisable to approve a Grant 
to the Arnprior Municipal Airport from the 2021 General Operating Fund.  

Therefore the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Arnprior enacts as follows: 

That the 2021 Grant to the Arnprior Municipal Airport be established at $60,000; and  

That this By-Law shall come into force and take effect on the date of its passing. 

Enacted and Passed this 8th day of February, 2021. 

Signatures: 

Walter Stack, Mayor  Maureen Spratt, Town Clerk 
 



The Corporation of the Town of Arnprior 

By-law Number 7132-21 

A by-law to adopt the 2021 Operating and Capital Budget Estimates. 

Whereas Section 290(1) of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, provides that a local 
municipality shall in each year or the immediately preceding year, prepare and adopt a budget 
including estimates of all sums required during the year for the purposes of the municipality; 
and  

Whereas notice to adopt the budget was given in accordance with the Municipal Act, 2001, 
S.O. 2001, c. 25 and the Town’s Notice By-law 6639-16 by being published on the Town’s 
website and in a newspaper at least ten (10) days in advance of the meeting at which the 
budget will be considered for adoption; and  

Whereas it is deemed necessary and expedient to adopt the capital and general operating 
budget estimates for the Town of Arnprior for the year 2021. 

Therefore, the Council of the Town of Arnprior enacts as follows:  

That the 2021 Operating Budget estimates, excluding the Airport Grant, attached as Schedule 
A forming part of this by-law be hereby adopted, approved and authorized; and  

That the 2021 Capital Budget estimates attached as Schedule B forming part of this by-law be 
hereby adopted, approved and authorized. 

That this By-law shall come into force and effect on the day of its passing. 

Enacted and passed this 8th day of February, 2021. 

Signatures: 

Walter Stack, Mayor  Maureen Spratt, Town Clerk 
  



Schedule A – 2021 Operating Budget 

Description Revenues Expenses 2021 Budget 
Taxation 

   

Revenue from Taxation  $10,046,433   $0    $10,046,433  
Payments in Lieu of Taxation 125,000  0   125,000  
General Government 

   

Council 0 221,050   (221,050) 
Clerk 46,900  339,100   (292,200) 
Corporate Management 187,750  1,012,310   (824,560) 
Human Resources 0  114,800   (114,800) 
Information Systems 56,550  292,500   (235,950) 
Protection to Persons & Property 

   

Fire Services 171,212  856,237   (685,025) 
Police Services 0    1,797,830   (1,797,830) 
Animal Services & Parking 
Enforcement 

37,520  99,600   (62,080) 

Public Works 
   

Public Works 669,725  2,621,523  (1,951,798) 
Vehicles and Equipment    659,300  270,400    388,900  
Buildings 0     301,320   (301,320) 
Crossing Guards 4,064  38,800   (34,736) 
Cemetery 112,000  106,100  5,900  
Environmental Services 

   

Waterworks 3,487,612  2,461,571  1,026,041  
Wastewater 2,433,475  2,036,975  396,500  
Waste Management 994,200  888,950  105,250  
Parks and Recreation 

   

Parks    4,500  300,750   (296,250) 
Marina 70,700  65,550  5,150  
Programs 133,650  373,025   (239,375) 
Nick Smith Centre - Programs 887,526  737,150  150,376  
Nick Smith Centre - Building 0  1,190,730   (1,190,730) 
Community Services 

   

Museum 47,680  197,300  (149,620) 
Protection, Inspection & Control  196,050  196,050  0 
Planning and Zoning 23,500  134,650   (111,150) 
Marketing and Economic 
Development 

24,000  226,950   (202,950) 

Grants and Subsidies 2,560,602   432,441  2,128,161  
To Reserves / Reserve Funds  0  5,606,287  (5,606,287) 
Total Operating Budget  $ 22,979,949   $22,919,949   $60,000  

Note: The expenses do not include the Arnprior Municipal Airport Grant for $60,000.  The 
Grant is authorized under separate by-law. 



Schedule B – 2021 Capital Budget 
 

NOTES

Linear Infrastructure

Rolling Road Rehab Program  - Road 
resurfacing, asphalt & sidewalk patches.  

Operations - 
Engineering LRCF Note 1 250,000 25,000 225,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Reconstruction: Alicia Street - Phase I & 
II - Watermain, sanitary, road and 
sidewalks. 

Operations - 
Engineering LRCF Note 2 2,250,000 850,402 1,147,500 252,098 CERF 51%, Water 28%, WW 21%

Design: Hugh St Reconstruction - Hugh 
St. S. from William St. W to Dead end

Operations - 
Engineering LRCF 70,000 28,000 42,000 CERF 40%, Water 20%, WW 40%

Design: Daniel St Signalization  - Design 
signalization project at Daniel / Edey. 

Operations - 
Engineering LRCF Note 3 75,000 37,500 37,500 DC 50%, CERF 50%

Sewer Spot Repairs - Madawaska Street Operations - 
Environmental LRCF Note 4 50,000 50,000 Wastewater Reserve Fund

Rolling Storm Control Measures - 
Installation of ICDs on existing storm sewers 
as recommended in SWMP.

Operations - 
Environmental LRCF & 

SWMP 10,000 10,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund
2,705,000 0 850,402 62,500 1,448,000 344,098

Facilities 
DA Gillies Building  - Fire Alarm & 
Sprinkler System 

Operations - 
Engineering LRCF Note 5 175,000 175,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Town Hall General Maintenance - 
Various repairs and maintenance identified 
in the 2014 Town Hall Study.

Operations - 
Engineering

LRCF 20,000 13,320 6,680 CERF 66.6%, Water 16.7%, WW 16.7%

OPP / Fire Building - Replace carpet and 
tile in both OPP and Fire sections. 

Operations - 
Engineering

NEW    
Lifecycle Note 6 30,000 30,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

NSC General Repairs and Maintenance: 
Address repairs backlog &  NSC Working 
Group recommendations. 

Operations - 
Recreation

LRCF 50,000 50,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Nick Smith Centre Building - HVAC 
Replacement - RTU #1 - Section 3.0 (1993)

Operations - 
Recreation LRCF 45,000 45,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Nick Smith Centre Building - Structural 
Repairs as per Cleland Jardine report. 

Operations - 
Recreation LRCF 40,000 40,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Community Hall Room Divider - 
Purchase and installation of room divider 

Operations - 
Recreation LRCF Note 7 20,000 5,400 14,600 CERF, 73%, DC 27%

Cooling Loop - Replace cooling loop from 
condenser for compressor heads (Arena)

Operations - 
Recreation

NEW 
Lifecycle Note 8 25,000 25,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

405,000 0 0 5,400 392,920 6,680

Reserve / Fund NameGrants
Development 

Charges
Reserves - 

Levy
Reserves - 
Water/WWCapital Project Department

Revenue Source

2020 WIPRationale
Total Project 

Cost

TOTAL Linear Infrastructure

TOTAL Facilities - Levy  



 

  

Facilities - Environmental

Water Filtration Plant - Filter media 
replacement (3) 

Operations - 
Environmental LRCF 75,000 75,000 Water Reserve Fund

Water Tower - Repair and repaint
Operations - 
Environmental LRCF 350,000 350,000 Water Reserve Fund

Pump Replacement - Pump Station #3 Operations - 
Environmental

NEW 
Lifecycle Note 9 50,000 50,000 Wastewater Reserve Fund

Pump Station #2 Communications 
Upgrade - Communication failures due to 
aging technology. 

Operations - 
Environmental

NEW 
Lifecycle Note 10 50,000 50,000 Wastewater Reserve Fund

525,000 0 0 0 0 525,000

Machinery & Equipment
Hardware Upgrades - Council Tablet 
replacement Client Services LRCF 10,000 10,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund
Hardware Upgrades - Annual lifecycle 
replacement of IT hardware. Client Services

Lifecycle 5,000 5,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund
Secure Access Policy - Implement multi-
factor authentication and access review Client Services NEW 

Security 8,000 8,000 Municipal Modernization Fund

Minor Capital - Corporate furniture, minor 
renovations and equipment replacement. Client Services

LRCF 10,000 10,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Minor Capital Equipment - Acquisition 
and/or replacement of aged tools & 
equipment used in providing core services.

Fire Department
LRCF 10,000 10,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Minor Capital - Recreational furniture, 
minor renovations and equipment 
replacement.

Operations - 
Recreation LRCF 10,000 10,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Firehall Building Generator - Lifecycle 
Replacement

Operations - 
Engineering

NEW 
Lifecycle Note 11 75,000 75,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Equipment Replacement - #17 Cat 
Loader (2010)

Operations - 
Roads & Services LRCF 110,000 110,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Equipment Replacement - Kubota Mower 
(1998) - Roads & Services

Operations - 
Roads & Services LRCF 30,000 30,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Ford Tractor - 1995 Operations - 
Recreation

NEW 
Lifecycle Note 12 35,000 35,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Library Materials - A major refresh of the 
large print collection. Library Board

3,000 3,000 Development Charges

306,000 0 8,000 3,000 295,000 0

TOTAL Facilities - Environmental

TOTAL Machinery & Equipment



 

  

Vehicles
Vehicle Replacement - #9 Half-Ton 
(2008)

Operations - 
Roads & Services LRCF Note 13 35,000 35,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Vehicle Replacement - #15 3 Ton 
Sewage Truck (1999)

Operations - 
Environmental LRCF Note 14 125,000 125,000 Wastewater Reserve Fund

160,000 0 0 0 35,000 125,000

Land Improvements
Emerald Ash Borer - Annual effort to 
manage EAB.  Will include removal and 
replanting of trees.

Operations - 
Recreation LRCF 25,000 25,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

NSC Parking Lot - Paving of the NSC Lot Operations - 
Recreation LRCF Note 15 600,000 162,000 438,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Downtown Banners - Lifecycle 
Replacement

Operations - 
Engineering

NEW 
Lifecycle 20,000 20,000 Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund

Bell Park - Demolish building, address 
hazardous materials.

Operations - 
Engineering

NEW 
Lifecycle Note 16 10,000 10,000 Insurance Stabilization Reserve

Marina Gates - Demolish and revamp as 
per insurance claim.

Operations - 
Engineering

NEW 
Lifecycle Note 17 35,618 35,618 Insurance Stabilization Reserve

690,618 0 0 162,000 528,618 0
Studies 
Community Improvement Plan  - 10 
Year Update

Community 
Services Branch LRCF 25,000 25,000 Marketing & Econ Reserve 

Affordable Housing Needs Study - 
Strategic Plan Initiative

Community 
Services Branch LRCF 15,000 15,000 Marketing & Econ Reserve 

Transportation Needs Study - Strategic 
Plan Initiative

Community 
Services Branch LRCF 10,000 10,000 Marketing & Econ Reserve 

Water / Wastewater Rate Study  - Update 
required to address changing consumption 
patterns and capital costs.

Client Services / 
Operations NEW

Note 18 15,000 15,000 Water 50%, WW 50%
Water and Wastewater Master Plan - 
Update required to support rapid growth. 

Operations - 
Environmental LRCF (2023) Note 19 200,000 150,000 50,000 Water 12.5%, WW 12.5%, DC 75%

265,000 0 0 150,000 65,000 50,000
5,056,618 0 858,402 382,900 2,764,538 1,050,778

TOTAL Land Improvements

TOTAL Studies
TOTAL CAPITAL 

TOTAL Vehicles



Capital Budget Notes: 
1) Rolling Road Rehab - specific roads / sidewalks to be determined based on condition. 
2) Alicia Street includes Phase I and Phase II - increased value is reflective of increased bid price however some efficiencies 

expected for project over one year instead of two.  
3) Signalization Design: As per staff report 20-11-23-01 there may be a developer contribution of $50K to offset a portion of 

the design.  
4) Sewer Spot Repairs:  Timed to coincide with County work on Elgin St; increased from $30K to $50K to reflect recent price 

increases and scope of work. 
5) DA Gillies Sprinkler System: Increase value to reflect increasing pricing. 
6) Carpet and tile replacement - at end of useful life.  
7) Community Hall Divider: Additional $5K added to reflect electrical work that will be required.  
8) Cooling Loops: New cooling loop installed off of condenser for compressor heads. 
9) Pump Station #3 pump replacement required for life-cycling and redundancy. 
10) Pump Station communications infrastructure replacement due to aging communication lines. 
11) Generator: In 2020 issues were noted with the fuel tank on the current generator (original to the building -24 yrs old).   

Quote is for $55-65K w/o install.   Important to have working generator for the EOC.  
12) Tractor currently out of service, due for lifecycle replacement.   
13) Half Ton: Increased from $30K to $35K to reflect current pricing trends.  
14) Sewage Truck: Increase from $110K to $125K based on inflation and recent vehicle pricing.  
15) Parking Lot: Cost revised to incorporate value in the BCA study and additional scope such as curbing and drainage works. 
16) Bell Park:  To demolish current structure and replacement TBD by waterfront plans.  Insurance claim $ to offset.  
17) Marina Gates: To demolish guard shack structures and replace with working gates.  Insurance claim $ to offset.  
18) Rate Study: Current rates insufficient to address reserve deficits.  Updated study is required to calculate rates to adjust for 

changing consumption patterns and rising capital costs. 
19) Water / WW Master Plan - Earlier requirements due to need to support rapid growth. 



The Corporation of the 
Town of Arnprior 

By-law Number 7133-21 

Being a By-Law concerning Works in Progress (WIP) projects.   

Whereas Sections 8, 9, and 11 of the Municipal Act, 2001, S.O. 2001, c. 25, authorize a 
municipality to pass by-laws necessary or desirable for municipal purposes, and in 
particular paragraph 3 of subsection 11(2) authorizes by-laws respecting the financial 
management of the municipality; and 

Whereas Council deems it necessary to carry forward Works in Progress (WIP) 
Projects from 2020 into 2021 and that the projects identified in Schedule A remain 
funded and active until completion. 

Therefore the Council of the Town of Arnprior enacts as follows:  

That existing approved funding for the Works in Progress (WIP) Projects as listed in 
Schedule A shall carry forward into 2021; and  

That upon project completion, the General Manager, Client Services/Treasurer shall 
return any residual capital funding to the original funding sources. 

Enacted and passed this 8th day of February, 2021. 

Signatures: 

Walter Stack, Mayor  Maureen Spratt, Town Clerk 
  



Schedule A - Capital Works-In-Progress 
 

Capital Project Account Code Cost 
Centre 

Balance 

Water Tower - Paint Design 2-5-4300-8400 1920    18,700  
Waterfront Master Plan 2-5-7001-8900 1934   50,719  
Software Upgrades 2-5-1260-8500 2002  15,438  
Network Infrastructure - Modernization 2-5-1260-8500 2039 115,640  
Vehicle Replacement - Utility Pickup 2-5-1700-8600 2006  55,000  
Road Surface Evaluation 2-5-2000-8900 2008  8,691  
AMP - Risk, Lifecycle & growth impacts 2-5-2000-8900 2009 25,000  
Town Hall General Maintenance  2-5-1300-8400 2010 23,698  
Rolling Road Rehabilitation Program  2-5-2000-8700 2013 209,568  
Craig Street Reconstruction Design  2-5-2000-8700 2015  42,501  
Water & Wastewater Model Update  2-5-4300-8900 2018 14,484  
Waterworks Shed Winterizing  2-5-2010-8400 2020 25,713  
River Crossing 400mm Design  2-5-4300-8700 2022 200,000  
NSC General Repairs and Maintenance 2-5-7120-8400 2028 16,728  
NSC Parking Lot Design 2-5-7120-8700 2031 9,175  
Ice Machine (1993) 2-5-7120-8500 2033 115,000  
Website Updates 2-5-8200-8200 2035 15,696  
CBC Study / DC Update 2-5-8200-8900 2036 15,000  
Total Works-in-Progress   $976,750 

 





















Schedule D – Protection Inspection and Control – Building  

Description Fees 

Plumbing Permit – per fixture $10.00 

Revision to permit (re-examination fee) $250.00 

Transfer of  permit $90.00 

Administrative Surcharge – regular permit fee plus: 75% 

Private Sewage System $500.00 

Occupancy Permit No Charge 

Sign Permit $50.00 

Private Swimming Pools $75.00 

Wood Energy Technology Transfer (WETT) Inspections 

For solid fuel burning appliance (includes report if compliant)  $125.00 

For 2nd solid fuel burning appliance at the same time as 1st appliance $50.00 

Re-inspection of non-compliant appliance per inspection (includes report if 
compliant) 

$50.00 

WETT Compliance Letter with existing building permit for solid fuel appliance – per 
appliance 

$25.00 

 



Schedule E – Community Development Branch – Planning and Economic Development 

Description Fees 

Planning Services Fees 

Consent per new lot created, boundary adjustment or easement requested (not 
including retained parcel) 

$1,100.00 

Minor Variance $1,100.00 

Recirculation for Consent or Minor Variance $500.00 

Deferral Fee for Consent or Minor Variance $300.00 

Validation of Title $500.00 

If Peer Review of any study is required – Peer Review Costs ($5,000 deposit 
required) 

Actual Costs 

Zoning Amendment $1,600.00 

Zoning Lifting of Holding $1,100.00 

OP Amendment $1,600.00 

Site Plan Applications (Fees plus Legal and Engineering Costs) ($5,000 Deposit 
Required) 

$1,600.00 

Site Plan Agreement Amendment $550.00 

Subdivision Agreement (Fees plus Legal and Engineering Costs) ($10,000 Deposit 
Required) 

$2,600.00 

Subdivision Agreement Amendment $1,100.00 

Review of Red Line changes to Draft Plan $500.00 

Release of Site Plan Agreement Fee $300.00 



Schedule E – Community Development Branch – Planning and Economic Development 

Description Fees 

Development Agreement $1,100.00 

Compliance Reports $100.00 

Deeming by-law $325.00 

Part Lot control (per by-law) or amendment to Part Lot Control By-law for extension $400.00 

Lifting of 0.3 m reserve – per block $400.00 

Encroachment By-law $325.00 

Vehicle agency letters $100.00 

Cash-in-lieu of Parking Agreement $325.00 

Cash-in-lieu of Parking – per parking space $1,600.00 

Condominium Approval (Fees plus Legal and Engineering Costs) ($10,000 Deposit 
Required) 

$2,600.00 

Condominium - Exemption  $1,000.00 

Draft Plan Approval Extension (Required Annually) $500.00 

Purchase and Sale Process Fee for Purchase of Town-Owned Lands $325.00 

Marketing and Economic Development Fees – Arnprior Life Advertisements 

Business Card (Size (WxH): 3.5 inch x 2 inch) – 1 issue $100.00 

Business Card (Size (WxH): 3.5 inch x 2 inch) – both issues booked at same time $180.00 



Schedule E – Community Development Branch – Planning and Economic Development 

Description Fees 

¼ Page (Size (WxH): 3.75 inch x 5 inch) – 1 issue $200.00 

¼ Page (Size (WxH): 3.75 inch x 5 inch) – both issues booked at same time $380.00 

½ Page (Size (WxH): 7.5 inch x 5 inch) – 1 issue $400.00 

½ Page (Size (WxH): 7.5 inch x 5 inch) – both issues booked at same time $780.00 

Full Page (Size (WxH): 7.5 inch x 10 inch) – 1 issue $600.00 

Full Page (Size (WxH): 7.5 inch x 10 inch) – both issues booked at same time $1,180.00 

Cover Half Page (Colour) (Size (WxH): 7.5 inch x 5 inch) – 1 issue $500.00 

Cover Half Page (Colour) (Size (WxH): 7.5 inch x 5 inch) – both issues booked at 
same time 

$980.00 

Cover Full Page (Colour) (Size (WxH): 7.5 inch x 10 inch) – 1 issue $700.00 

Cover Full Page (Colour) (Size (WxH): 7.5 inch x 10 inch) – both issues booked at 
same time 

$1,380.00 

Recreation Listing (Name & Phone Number) – 1 issue $25.00 

Recreation Listing & Description (Name, Phone Number and 30 word description) – 
1 issue 

$50.00 



Schedule E – Community Development Branch – Planning and Economic Development 

Description Fees 

Marketing and Economic Development Fees – Arnprior Discovery Guide Advertisements  

¼ Page (Size (WxH): 2.5 inch x 4 inch) $150.00 

Banner Ad (Size (WxH): 5 inch x 2 inch) $200.00 

½ Page (Size (WxH): 5 inch x 4 inch) $300.00 

Full Page (Size (WxH): 5 inch x 8 inch) $600.00 

Cover (Colour) (Size (WxH): 5 inch x 8 inch) $1,000.00 

Coupon (Size (WxH): 5 inch x 2 inch) – must offer at least 30% savings and be valid 
for the entire year or season 

No Charge 

Marketing and Economic Development Fees – Nick Smith Centre Advertising  

Nick Smith Centre Wall Ad – Annual $250.00 

Nick Smith Centre Rink Board Ad – Annual  $500.00 

Nick Smith Centre Ice Surface Ad – Annual  

Note: Advertiser is responsible for providing physical signage 

$750.00 

 




















































	Council and Staff Attendance
	Council Members Present:
	Council Members Absent:
	Town Staff Present:

	1. Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	3. Adoption of Agenda
	4. Disclosures of Pecuniary Interest
	5. Question Period
	6. Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)
	7. Awards/Delegations/Presentations
	a) Presentations
	i. 2021 User Fees and Charges Review – General Manager, Client Services/ Treasurer


	8. Public Meeting
	9. Matter Tabled/ Deferred/ Unfinished Business
	10. Staff Reports
	a) 2021 Strategic Plan Update – CAO
	b) Zoning By-law Amendment (ZBLA) 3/20 Phase 2 Marshall’s Bay Meadows Subdivision – Town Planner
	c) Deeming By-law Application File No. D1/20 (Fairgrounds Subdivision) – Town Planner

	11. Committee Reports and Minutes
	12. Notice of Motions
	13. County Councillor’s Report from County Council
	14. Correspondence & Petitions
	a) Correspondence Package – I-21-January-01
	b) Correspondence Package – A-21-January-02

	9. By-laws/Resolutions
	a) By-laws

	10. Announcements
	11. Media Questions
	12. Closed Session
	13. Confirmatory By-Law
	14. Adjournment
	Signatures

	Council Minutes -2021-02-01.pdf
	Council and Staff Attendance
	Council Members Present:
	Council Members Absent:
	Town Staff Present:

	1. Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	3. Adoption of Agenda
	4. Disclosures of Pecuniary Interest
	5. Question Period
	6. Awards/Delegations/Presentations
	a) Presentations
	i. 2021 Draft Operating Budget
	ii. 2021 Draft Capital Budget
	iii. Supporting Documents (Reserves/ Reserve Funds; Debt; 2020 Works in Progress (WIP)
	iv. 2021 Long Range Capital Forecast (LRCF)


	7. Confirmatory By-Law
	8. Adjournment
	Signatures


	Feb 8 Report to Council - Code of Conduct Complaint.pdf
	Town of Arnprior Staff Report
	Subject: Complaint under Code of Conduct
	Report Number: 21-02-08-01
	Report Author and Position Title: Maureen Spratt, Town Clerk
	Department: Client Services
	Meeting Date: February 8, 2021

	Recommendations:
	Background:
	Discussion:
	Options:
	Policy Considerations:
	Financial Considerations:
	Meeting Dates:
	Consultation:
	Documents:
	Signatures

	2020-02-08-Report - Marshall's Bay Meadows - Phase 2 Pre-site works.pdf
	Town of Arnprior Staff Report
	Subject: Marshall’s Bay Meadows Subdivision – Preliminary Earthworks and Rock Blasting
	Report Number: 21-02-08-02
	Report Author and Position Title: Megan Rueckwald, Town Planner
	Department: Community Services Branch
	Meeting Date: February 8, 2021

	Recommendations:
	Background:
	Discussion:
	Options:
	Policy Considerations:
	Financial Considerations:
	Meeting Dates:
	Consultation:
	Documents:
	Signatures

	2021-02-08 Report - Semi-Detached Units ZBA.pdf
	Town of Arnprior Staff Report
	Subject: Town Initiated Zoning By-law Amendment – Semi-Detached Dwellings on Separate Lots
	Department: Community Services Branch
	Report Number: 21-02-08-03
	Report Author: Megan Rueckwald, Town Planner
	Meeting Date: February 8, 2021

	Recommendations:
	Background:
	Discussion:
	Options:
	Policy Considerations:
	Financial Considerations:
	Meeting Dates:
	Consultation:
	Documents:
	Signatures

	2021 Budget Matter report (kz accessibility updates).pdf
	Town of Arnprior Staff Report
	Subject: Budget Matters – Expenses: Ontario Regulation 284/09
	Report Number: 21-02-08-04
	Report Author and Position Title: Estelle Moynes,  Manager of Finance & Support Services
	Department: Client Services
	Meeting Date: February 8, 2021

	Recommendations:
	Background:
	Discussion:
	Options:
	Policy Considerations:
	Financial Considerations:
	Meeting Dates:
	Consultation:
	Documents:
	Signatures

	Budget By-Law - 2021 Operating & Capital.pdf
	By-law Number 7132-21
	Schedule A – 2021 Operating Budget
	Schedule B – 2021 Capital Budget

	By-law - Approval of 2020 Works in Progress.pdf
	Schedule A - Capital Works-In-Progress

	2021-02-08 - Black History Month  Proclamation Report.pdf
	Town of Arnprior Staff Report
	Subject: Proclamation – 2021 Black History Month
	Report Number: 21-02-08-05
	Report Author and Position Title: Kaila Zamojski, Deputy Clerk
	Department: Client Services
	Meeting Date: February 8, 2021

	Recommendations:
	Background:
	Documents:
	Signatures

	By-Law - User Fees and Charges.pdf
	By-law Number 7134-21

	ADP4AAA.tmp
	1. Call to Order
	2. Roll Call
	3. Adoption of Agenda (Additions/ Deletions)
	4. Disclosures of Pecuniary Interest
	5. Question Period
	6. Adoption of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) (Except Minutes of Closed Session)
	a) Regular Meeting of Council – January 25, 2021 (Page 1-9)
	b) Special Meeting of Council – February 1, 2021 (Page 10-12)

	7. Awards/ Delegations/ Presentations
	8. Public Meetings
	9. Matters Tabled/ Deferred/ Unfinished Business
	10. Staff Reports
	a) Integrity Commissioner Report, Maureen Spratt, Town Clerk (Page 13-18)
	b) Marshall’s Bay Meadows Preliminary Earthworks and Rock Blasting Megan Rueckwald, Town Planner (Page 19-23)
	c) Town Initiated Zoning B-law Amendment- Semi-Detached Dwellings Standards Committee, Megan Rueckwald, Town Planner (Page 24-26)
	d) Budget Expenses: Ontario Regulation 284/09, Estelle Moynes, MFSS/Deputy Treasurer (Page 27-31)
	e) Proclamation – February Black History Month, Kaila Zamojski, Deputy Clerk (Page 32-34)

	11. Committee Reports and Minutes
	12. Notice of Motion(s)
	13. County Councillor’s Report from County Council
	14. Correspondence & Petitions
	a) Correspondence
	i. Correspondence Package I-21-February-03
	ii. Correspondence Package A-21-February-02


	15. By-laws & Resolutions
	a) By-laws
	i. By-law No. 7130-21 – Adopt 2021 Arnprior Airport Operating Grant (Page 35)
	ii. By-law No. 7131-21 – Adopt 2021 Operating and Capital Budget (Page 36-41)
	iii. By-law No. 7132-21 – Adopt WIP (Page 42-43)
	iv. By-law No. 7132-21 – Adopt User Fees and Charges By-law (Page 44-82)

	b) Resolutions
	i. Long Range Capital Forecast


	16. Announcements
	17. Media Questions
	18. Closed Session
	19. Confirmatory By-law
	By-law No. 7133-21 to confirm the proceedings of Council

	20. Adjournment




